
 

 

 
 

WSW Joint Finance Committee & Executive Board Meeting 
Zoom Conference Call 

January 19, 2022 3:00 – 4:30 pm 
 

AGENDA 
 
  
 
3:00   Welcome         Paige Spratt 

Renny Christopher  
 
3:05  Consent Agenda        Paige Spratt  

• Approval of Executive & Finance Committee Minutes 

• Approval of Policy Memo 
 

3:15  Finance             Renny Christopher 

• Audit Report        Barri Horner 
Guests 
 

3:50  Governance Report Out       A.D. Simmons 

• Appointed Fiscal Committee Member (1)   Ralph Clark 
o  Bob Gustainis  

• Appointed Executive Committee Members (2)  
o Darcy Altizer and Monte Constable 

• General Board Recruitment Update 
 
4:15  Bylaw Review and Revision        Paige Spratt 
 
4:25  Open Discussion / Other Items      Paige Spratt  
 
4:30   Adjourn 
 
 

NOTES 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

WSW Executive Board Meeting 
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 
Page | 1 
 

 
 

WSW Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
December 15, 2021 

3:30 p.m. 
Zoom Conference Call, WSW 

 
Executive Board Members Present: Chair Paige Spratt, Councilor Karen Bowerman, Renny 
Christopher, Ralph Clark, A.D. Simmons, and Ted Sprague. 
 
Executive Board Members with Excused Absences:  John Vanderkin. 
 
Staff Members Present:  CEO Miriam Halliday, Amy Gimlin, Barri Horner, and Traci Williams. 
 
WELCOME: 
Chair Paige Spratt opened the meeting at 3:33 p.m. and welcomed everyone in attendance.  
 
APPROVALS: 
Having reached quorum, Chair Spratt entertained a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, consisting 
of the joint Finance/Executive Board minutes held on November 17,2021. 
 
Karen Bowerman moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented, second by Ted Sprague. 
Motion carried. 
 
FINANCE: 

• WSW Resolution for Change of Authorized Account Signers on the Umpqua Bank Checking 
Account:   

A motion was entertained that Kevin Perkey and Kelley Foy will be removed as signers on the 
SWWDC Checking Account at Umpqua Bank. That Miriam Halliday, CEO will be added as a signer on 
the account. That Paige Spratt and Renny Christopher will remain as signers on the account.  
 

• Columbia Credit Union Resolution for Approval of New WSW Account Signers: 
A motion was entertained that Kevin Perkey and Kelley Foy will be removed as signers from the 
Money Market Account at Columbia Credit Union. That Miriam Halliday, CEO will be added as a signer 
eon the account. That Paige Spratt and Renny Christopher will remain as signers on the account. 
 

• WSW Resolution for Use of Online Banking and Appointment of New Columbia Credit 
Union Online Banking Services Account Administrator: 

A motion was entertained that Miriam Halliday, CEO and Renny Christopher, Treasurer of the Board 
of Directors are authorized to sign on behalf of WSW on the Money Market account at Columbia 
Credit Union. This authorization includes the authority to transact financial and/or banking business 
using Columbia Credit Union’s Business Online Banking and to assign agents to assist with carrying 
out these duties. 



 

WSW Executive Board Meeting 
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 
Page | 2 
 

 
Ted Sprague moved to approve all three resolutions as presented above, second by A.D. Simmons. 
Motion carried. 
 
INTERIM VICE CHAIR PROCESS: 
Chair Spratt shared that at the December board meeting when she announced A.D. Simmons as 
Interim Vice Chair that some steps to that process might have been missed. After reviewing the WSW 
Bylaws and Board Nominations procedure that there is not a distinguished process between interim 
and vice chair. In the Bylaws, officer positions need to be nominated at the Executive Board level then 
taken to the full board for final approval.  
 
Paige Spratt moved to nominate A.D. Simmons to Interim Vice Chair to the full board for approval as 
presented, second by Renny Christopher. Motion carried. 
 
An email to the full board to approve the nomination of A.D. Simmons to Interim Vice Chair to the 
WSW Board will be sent out after the Executive Board meeting. 
 
BYLAW REVIEW + REVISION: 
Chair Spratt and Ms. Halliday updated the Executive Board that the need to revisit the bylaws is crucial, 
since a revision has not taken place in six years. Chair Spratt will put together a Bylaw Review 
Committee to review and revise WSW’s current bylaws to fit and align with how WSW operates and 
update committees. Ms. Halliday mentioned that it would give good direction to the recruitment 
efforts that the Governance Committee and herself are taking on in the new year to fill open WSW 
board seats. The bylaw review and revisions will start at the new year. Questions were answered and 
addressed by Chair Spratt and Ms. Halliday. 
 
CEO REPORT 
Ms. Halliday shared with the Executive board the Employment Security Department’s follow up letter 
of the State-Level Equal Opportunity Office Monitoring Review of WSW that occurred on October 22, 
2021. Ms. Halliday thanked Amy Gimlin for all the hard work that she has been doing towards WSW’s 
EO work to ensure equal access to WorkSource services for all the populations in our area and the level 
of compliance with the equal opportunity provisions of WIOA. Also shared was the general overview 
of the process for the Adult, Dislocated Worker, Rapid Response RFP’s that will be going out this year. 
The scoring committee will submit their recommendation for funding to the Executive board this 
spring with a final approval to the full board this coming June. Questions were answered and 
addressed by Ms. Halliday. 
 
CEO Halliday mentioned to the Executive Board that she would like to grant the WSW staff with an 
extra holiday day that would fall on December 23, 2021, for just this year. 
 
Ted Sprague moved to approve December 23rd, 2021, as an extra holiday day to the WSW staff as 
presented, second by Renny Christopher. Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS / OTHER ITEMS 
None were forthcoming. 
 



 

WSW Executive Board Meeting 
Wednesday, December 15, 2021 
Page | 3 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
With nothing further for the good of the order, Chair Spratt entertained a motion to adjourn the meeting 
at 4:13 p.m. 
 
 

 



 

Page 1 of 1 

 

POLICY MEMO 

DATE: JANUARY 12, 2022 

TO: MIRIAM HALLIDAY 

 WSW EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

FROM: AMY GIMLIN, WSW CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 

RE: POLICY UPDATES 

2011 Stevens Amendment Requirements 

During the PY20 monitoring year, WSW was monitored by Department of Labor and Employment Security 
Department. One of the findings was noncompliance with the Stevens Amendment required by federal law. This 
policy reiterates the requirements for WSW and subcontractors to follow.  

Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Board and Full Board approval. 

Tier 3 – Substantial  

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State or Federal 
mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery. These revisions require 
approval from both Executive Board and Full Board. 

   

 

 

 



 

 
WSW #2011 Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy                    Page 1 of 2 

Workforce Southwest Washington                       
Policies and Procedures  

 
STEVENS AMENDMENT REQUIREMENTS 
POLICY #2011:  
           
Date of Original Policy:   12/21/2021  

 
PURPOSE 
Workforce Southwest Washington (WSW) is establishing a policy to ensure compliance 
with the Stevens Amendment. 
 
BACKGROUND 
WSW has established the following policy pursuant to P.L. 115-141, Division H, Title V, 
Section 505. P.L. 115-141, Division H, Title V, Section 505 is an appropriations provision 
that requires grantees of the Departments of Labor (DOL), Health and Human Services 
(HHS), and Education to disclose for a grant program the percent of the costs financed 
with federal funds, the federal dollar amount, and the percentage and dollar amount 
financed by nongovernmental funds. Additionally, a different two-part formulation of the 
Stevens Amendment is included in the Department of Agriculture’s (USDA’s) general 
permanent statutory authority at 7 USC 2209d.  
 
The policy requirements below are separate from those in 2 CFR 200 and, when 
appropriate, both must be complied with. 
 
POLICY  
WSW staff as well as WSW’s Subrecipient Program Operators and Managers will 
include a statement in all applicable outreach and marketing materials acknowledging 
the use of Federal funds. Applicable outreach and marketing materials include but are 
not limited to - statements; press releases; requests for proposals; bid solicitations; and 
other documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal 
money.  
 
All grantees receiving Federal funds, including but not limited to State and local 
governments and recipients of Federal research grants, shall clearly state:  

• the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be 
financed with Federal money;  

• the dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program; and  

• the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program 
that will be financed by non-governmental sources.  

 
WSW, as the Administrative Entity and Fiscal Agent for the Southwest Workforce Area 
and its subrecipients of WIOA funds, will formally monitor annually, the outreach and 
marketing materials distributed by self or subrecipients receiving state or federal dollars 
in accordance with the grant requirements. 
 
An acknowledgment statement is required for social media and can be done so by 
offering a link to the press release, website, etc. that has the Stevens Amendment 
posted. Statement in social media should say: 



 

 
WSW #2011 Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy                    Page 2 of 2 

This product or program was funded with Federal grant funds. To learn the 
sources and proportions, please go to (website link). 

 
 
WEBSITE 
 
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies  
 
INQUIRIES 
 
Please contact Amy Gimlin agimlin@workforcesw.org (360) 567-1059 with questions. 
 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
mailto:agimlin@workforcesw.org


SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 1 of 15 

SOUTHWEST WASHINGTON WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 
 

 BYLAWS 
 
 Article I 
 
 NAME AND MISSION  
 
Section 1.1 Name.  The name of this non-profit corporation is the Southwest Washington 
Workforce Development Council (WDC).  The organization does business as Workforce 
Southwest Washington (WSW).  
 
Section 1.2 Vision.  The WDC is the strategic leader for workforce issues in the three-county region 
of Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties. 
 
Section 1.3 Mission.  The WDC achieves our vision by engaging in the following activities: 
 

♦ Identifying critical workforce issues and trends in the three-county region 
 
♦ Developing strategies and plans for addressing these issues 
 
♦ Determining what role the WDC will play in the resolution of these issues 
 
♦ Acting as the convening agent for interested parties vested in addressing workforce issues 
 
♦ Partnering with economic development efforts in the region 
 
♦ Being accountable for the programs for which the WDC has stewardship 
 
♦ Disseminating information on workforce issues and status 
 
♦ Developing the best possible Board of Directors, Council, officers, and staff so as to 

achieve WDC goals 
 
♦ Seeking and leveraging additional sources of funding to support the achievement of WDC 

efforts. 
 

 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 2 of 15 

 Article II  
 
 OBJECTS AND JURISDICTION 
 
Section 2.1 Primary Object.  The primary object of the Corporation is to fulfill its responsibilities 
under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) (Public Law 113-108 and its 
amendment/s and successor/s) in partnership with the local elected officials of the Southwest 
Washington workforce investment area. 
  
Section 2.2 Jurisdiction.  The Corporation’s workforce investment area shall be the political 
jurisdictions of Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties or any other geographic area resulting 
from agreements approved by the Board of Directors, the chief elected officials of the local 
workforce investment area (herein referred to as the Executive Board of County Commissioners), 
and the Governor.  
 
 Article III 
 
 AUTHORITY OF THE WDC  
 
The WDC shall assume the role and responsibilities of a local workforce investment board as 
provided for under the WIOA.  The WDC shall provide policy guidance and exercise oversight of 
programs conducted under the WIOA in partnership with the Executive Board of County 
Commissioners.  While it is not the intent of the WDC to provide direct services, the Council may 
provide direct services for non-WIOA programs on an exceptional basis and with the approval of 
the Executive Board.  All approvals will be reported to the full Board at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting.  The WDC as a full membership body shall be responsible for the following: 
 

a. Establish a strategic plan and/or a regional plan (if required) for workforce development 
that incorporates the goals and visions of each of the three counties as represented in 
each county’s comprehensive land use and economic development plans. 

b. Obtain input and develop training program standards that meet or exceed federal and 
state program requirements. 

c. Select and certify WorkSource one-stop operator(s). 

d. Partner and integrate with business, education, community-based organizations, 
organized labor, and government entities to identify workforce development needs and 
priorities. 

e. Advocate on behalf of the region’s workforce development priorities. 

f. Establish and review the Corporation’s mission, priorities, and goals. 
 
g. Have and exercise all powers necessary or convenient to affect any or all of the 

purposes for which the WDC is organized. 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 3 of 15 

 Article IV 
 
 WDC MEMBERSHIP  
 
The members of the Council  shall be appointed by the elected officials of Clark, Cowlitz, and 
Wahkiakum counties to represent the various segments of the population of the workforce 
investment area as outlined in Section 107(b) of the WIOA and required by the State Workforce 
Board and as allowed by the WIOA  in section 107.   
 
 Article V 
 
 TENURE 
 
Section 5.1 Length of Term.  Members shall be appointed to the WDC for three (3)-year terms. 
WDC terms shall generally be scheduled to expire on June 30 of the applicable year.  Unless the 
member dies, resigns, or is removed, each member shall serve until the said term expires or until a 
successor is appointed.  When a vacancy occurs prior to the expiration of a term, the vacancy shall 
initially be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term. 
 
Section 5.2 Change in Status.  Board members are appointed to represent specific constituencies.  
Therefore, should a WDC member terminate his or her employment with a specific company or 
organization, he or she will cease to be a member of the WDC, unless specifically requested by the 
appointing official to complete his or her term.   
 
Section 5.3 Number of Terms.  The number of terms a member may serve shall be unlimited. 
 
Section 5.4 Vacancies.  The Chair of the Board shall see that notification is made to the appointing 
county of a vacancy and request that the recruitment process be initiated to refill the position. 
 
Section 5.5 Removal of Members.  Members may be removed from the WDC at the sole discretion 
of the appointing local elected official. 
 
 Article VI 
 
 ATTENDANCE 
 
Section 6.1 Active and Inactive Members.  There shall be two categories of members:  active and 
inactive.  "Active" members are those who are not on an approved leave of absence as defined in 
Section 6.2.  An "inactive" member is one who is excused from participation under an approved 
leave of absence. 
 
Section 6.2 Leave of Absence.  A member may petition the Board Chair for a leave of absence for a 
specified period of time normally not to exceed three (3) months.  Inactive members shall be 
excused from meetings of the Council and committee meetings.  An inactive member shall not be 
reported as absent during an approved leave of absence, nor shall an inactive member be counted 
for the purpose of determining a quorum.   



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 4 of 15 

 
Section 6.3 Absenteeism.  A member shall notify the Board’s Recording Secretary of his/her 
impending absence.  When a member confirms his/her intention to be present at a meeting of the 
WDC and then does not attend the meeting, the absence will be considered unexcused.  When a 
member neither contacts the Board’s Recording Secretary nor attends a meeting of the WDC, the 
absence will be considered unexcused. 
 
After two (2) unexcused absences in a year, a courtesy letter signed by the Chair shall be sent to that 
member providing notice that another unexcused absence shall result in termination from the WDC. 
Three (3) unexcused absences during a member’s term shall act as a voluntary resignation from the 
WDC, creating a vacancy without the need for further action.  Unexcused absences shall be noted 
in the minutes of the WDC. 
 
 Article VII 
 
 MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS AND MEETING NOTICES  
 
Section 7.1 Regular Meetings.  At the beginning of each fiscal year, the WDC shall establish a 
regular meeting schedule.  Meetings may be cancelled by the Chair so long as one meeting is held 
each program quarter, on dates and at times determined by the Board.  A meeting notice, agenda, 
and background information shall be prepared and sent to all members at least seven (7) days but 
not more than fifty (50) days prior to the meeting, either personally, by mail, by email, or by fax.   
 
Section 7.2 Annual Meeting.  The annual membership meeting of the Corporation shall be held in 
May of each year, or at another time specified by the membership.  
 
Section 7.3 Special Meetings.  The Board Chair shall call special meetings of the WDC 
membership when requested to do so by one-third (1/3) the current membership of the WDC, by 
the Board, by the Executive Board of County Commissioners, or when such a meeting is otherwise 
deemed necessary by the Chair.  To call a special meeting, a minimum of ten (10) days’ advance 
notice must be given to each member.  The agenda for a special meeting shall clearly state the 
purpose(s) of the meeting, and no other business may be considered at the meeting except that 
which is stated on the agenda. 
 
Section 7.4 Public Meetings.  WDC membership meetings shall be conducted in accordance with 
the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 of the Revised Code of Washington, as amended.  
The public will be informed of all regular meetings of the WDC through publication of a notice in 
the local newspaper of general circulation within each county.  The notice, submitted for 
publication at least ten (10) days in advance of the meetings, will state the date, time and location of 
the meeting.  Every effort will be made to issue a public notice of special meetings.  When issued, 
the public notice for a special meeting shall specify the purpose of the meeting.  
 
Section 7.5 Executive Sessions.  The WDC may meet in closed session when discussing personnel 
matters, real estate transactions, contract negotiations, or other matters identified in and allowed 
under RCW 42.30.110 of the Open Public Meetings Act.   
 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 5 of 15 

 Article VIII 
 
 CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
 
Pursuant to the WIOA and consistent with Chapter 42.23 Revised Code of Washington, no WDC 
member or director shall cast a vote on the provision of services by that member or director (or any 
organization which that member represents) or vote on any matter which would provide direct or 
indirect financial benefit to that member or director (or to any agency or organization that member 
or director represents).  To the extent possible, members and directors shall avoid the appearance of 
a conflict. 
 
No member or director shall lobby the WDC or individual members of the WDC, its Board of 
Directors or individual directors of the Board, Executive Board of County Commissioners, or 
Board Committees in private or in public on behalf of any action before the WDC, Board, or 
Executive Board of County Commissioners that may financially benefit the member or director or 
any organization which that member or director represents.   
 
WDC members and directors shall be bound by and shall comply with any and all conflict of 
interest policies (Policy #1006) and procedures adopted by the Board.  

 
Article IX 

 
 WDC QUORUM REQUIREMENTS AND VOTING 
 
Section 9.1 WDC Quorum.  A quorum shall exist when fifty (50) percent or more of the appointed 
active members are present.  The act of the majority of the members present at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present shall be the act of the WDC, unless the act of a greater number is required by 
law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. 
 
Section 9.2 WDC Voting.  Each member shall have one vote, which may not be assigned to another 
member or alternate.  The Chair shall vote only to make or break a tie.  No votes shall be taken by 
secret ballot or submitted in the form of a proxy. 
 
Section 9.3 WDC Presumption of Assent.  A member present at a WDC meeting at which action on 
any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken, unless the 
member’s dissent or abstention is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless the member files 
a written dissent to such action with the person taking the minutes of the meeting before the 
adjournment thereof, or unless such dissent or abstention is forwarded by registered mail to the 
Chair of the Corporation within twenty-four (24) hours of the date and time of the adjournment of 
the meeting.  A member who voted in favor of such action may not subsequently dissent or abstain. 
 

Article X 
 
 OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION 
 

http://www.swwdc.org/documents/1006Rev2ConflictofInterest_000.doc


SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 6 of 15 

Section 10.1 Officers.  The officers of the Corporation shall be the Board Chair, the Vice Chair, and 
the Treasurer. 
 
Section 10.2 Duties and Responsibilities of the Officers.  The duties and responsibilities of the 
officers shall be: 
 
 10.2.1 The Board/WDC Chair 
 
 The Chair shall preside over all meetings of the full WDC membership and Board.  Subject 

to the Board’s control, the Chair shall supervise the assets and business affairs of the 
Corporation. 

           
 The Chair may sign deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments that the Board 

has authorized to be executed, except when the signing and execution thereof have been 
expressly delegated by the Board or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the 
Corporation, or are required by law to be otherwise signed or executed by some other 
officer or agent in some other manner. 

             
 The Chair shall perform all duties incident to the office of Board/WDC Chair and such 

other duties prescribed by the Board from time to time.  The Chair has the authority to 
create ad hoc committees, subject to approval by the Board.   The Chair shall appoint all 
standing and ad hoc committee members and committee chairs, except for the Chair of the 
Youth Committee.  The Chair may appoint advisory committee members.  The Chair shall 
be an ex-officio member of all committees. 

 
 10.2.2 Vice Chair 
 
 In the absence of the Chair or in the event of his/her death, inability, or refusal to act, the 

Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair and, when so acting, shall have all the 
powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chair.   

 
 The Vice Chair shall have, to the extent authorized by the Chair or the Board, the same 

powers as the Board/WDC Chair to sign deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other 
instruments.   The Vice Chair shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be 
assigned by the Chair or by the Board.  

 
 10.2.3 Treasurer 
 

The Treasurer shall perform, or cause to be performed, the following duties:  (a) keeping 
of full and accurate accounts of all financial records of the Corporation; (b) deposit of all 
monies and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Corporation in such 
depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors; (c) disbursement of all funds 
when proper to do so; (d) making financial reports as the financial condition of the 
Corporation to the Board of Directors; and (e) any other duties as may be prescribed by 
the Board of Directors.  

 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 7 of 15 

Section 10.3 Election of Officers and Board Members.  The election of officers and at-large 
members of the Board of Directors shall take place on even-numbered years at the June meeting of 
the WDC membership; if there is no June meeting, then the next meeting following the month of 
June.  To hold an election, a quorum of the members must be present.  To be elected, the officer 
and director candidates must each receive a majority affirmative vote of those members present. 
 
Section 10.4 Nominating Committee.  The WDC will follow the procedures laid out in Board 
Nomination Procedure #2006. 
 
Section 10.5 Election Criteria.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected from among 
representatives of the private sector.  The Treasurer shall be elected from members of the WDC.  
An officer shall not be eligible to serve more than two consecutive terms in the same office.  
 
Section 10.6 Term of Office.  Officers and directors shall begin their terms on July 1 of the new 
fiscal year and shall serve for two (2) years.  Unless an officer or director dies, resigns, or is 
removed, he/she shall hold office until the said term is expired or until a successor is elected. 
 
Section 10.7 Removal.  An officer or director elected by the WDC may be removed by a vote of the 
members of the WDC when, in their sole judgment, the best interest of the Corporation would be 
served.  The officer or director will be notified prior to the meeting at which a motion to remove 
will be made.  An officer or director is removed by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of those 
members present. 
 
Section 10.8 Vacancies.  A vacancy in an elected office or director position shall be filled as soon 
as possible for the remainder of the term.  The Nominating Committee shall be 
reactivated/reappointed in the event of such vacancy.  Vacant officer or director positions shall be 
filled following the same procedures outlined in Section 10.4. 
 

Article XI 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPOSITION 
 
Section 11.1 Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as the “Executive 
Board,” shall consist of nine members, as follows:  
 

a. The Chair of the WDC 

b. The Vice-Chair of the WDC 

c. The Treasurer of the WDC 

d. Four WDC members elected at-large 

e. The immediate past chair of the WDC 

e.    One member of the Executive Board of County Commissioners 

http://www.swwdc.org/documents/BoardNominationsProcedureswithExBoardRevisions.FINAL.ADOPTED03.09.2016.pdf
http://www.swwdc.org/documents/BoardNominationsProcedureswithExBoardRevisions.FINAL.ADOPTED03.09.2016.pdf


SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 8 of 15 

Section 11.2 Composition of  the Executive Board.  At least two of the WDC members serving on 
the Executive Board shall represent the private sector.  At least one member of the Executive Board 
shall be elected from each of the region’s three counties whenever possible.  No member affiliated 
with a service-providing organization receiving WIOA Title I-B or other WDC-administered funds 
may be seated on the Executive Board, except for those funds directed by individual participant 
choice such as individual training accounts, on-the-job training contracts, child care providers, etc. 
 
Section 11.3 Duties of a Director.  A director shall perform the duties of a director, including the 
duties as a member of any committee of the Executive Board/Council upon which the director may 
serve in good faith; in a manner such director believes to be in the best interests of the Corporation; 
and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position 
would use under similar circumstances. 
 
In performing the duties of a director, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, 
reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared 
or presented by: 
 
(l) One or more officers or employees of the Corporation whom the director believes to be 

reliable and competent in the matter presented; 
 
(2) Counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters which the director believes to be 

within such person's professional or expert competence; or 
 
(3) A committee of the WDC or Board upon which the director does not serve, duly designated 

in accordance with a provision in the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, as to matters 
within its designated authority, which committee the director believes to merit confidence; 
so long as, in any such case, the director acts in good faith, after reasonable inquiry (the 
need for inquiry will be indicated by the circumstances) and without knowledge that would 
cause such reliance to be unwarranted.  

 
Section 11.4 Responsibility of Directors.  Directors are elected as individuals, not delegates, to the 
Executive Board.  They are, therefore, expected to act in the best interest of the Corporation at all 
times.  Directors are obliged to prepare for and attend meetings, participate in committee work, and 
abide by the Executive Board's policies and Bylaws.  Directors shall abide by majority rule after 
presenting their views and the views of those they represent.   
 
 
 
 

Article XII 
 

AUTHORITY OF THE WDC BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Section 12.1 General Authority.  The business affairs of the Corporation shall be governed by its 
Board of Directors.   
 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 9 of 15 

Section 12.2 Administrative Entity Authority and Responsibility.  The Corporation shall assume 
designation as the Administrative Entity for the WIOA, effective July 1, 2015.  In order to carry out 
these functions, the Corporation’s Board of Directors shall, in compliance with the laws, rules and 
regulations pertaining to the WIOA and non-profit corporations, be responsible for the following: 
           
    12.2. Human Resources: 
 

a. The Executive Director serves at the pleasure of the Executive Board, which is 
responsible to hire, supervise, and assess the performance of the Executive Director 
of the Corporation. 

 
 b. Determine and enforce the personnel policies of the Corporation.  

 
   12.2.2  Program Administration: 
 

a. At the direction of the WDC and in accordance with its established procurement 
process, award contracts to organizations to implement the policies of the strategic 
plan. 

b. Monitor and evaluate the performance of all contractors and WorkSource one-stop 
sites, and report performance to the full WDC membership and the State Workforce 
Board. 

    12.2.3 Financial Management: 
 

 a. Ensure that the Corporation's administrative and financial management systems 
adequately meet the requirements of its funding sources. 

               
 b. Approve budgets, approve disbursements, and control capital assets for the use and 

benefit of the three-county workforce investment area. 
 

Article XIII 
 
 STANDING AND AD HOC COMMITTEES 
 
Section 13.1 Committees.  The Executive Board may appoint standing and ad hoc committees from 
the WDC membership and invest such committees with such powers as it may see fit, subject to 
such conditions as may be prescribed by the Executive Board and applicable laws.  The 
establishment of any such committee and the delegation of authority thereto shall not relieve the 
WDC, the Executive Board, or any individual director thereof of any responsibility imposed by law. 
 
Section 13.2 Committee Appointments.  To the extent possible, committee members shall be 
appointed so that the private sector and the geographic areas of the three-county area are equitably 
represented.  Members shall be appointed to committees by the Executive Board Chair.  Committee 
appointments shall be made at the first Board meeting of a new fiscal year.  An appointment or 
reappointment that occurs after the first Board meeting of a new fiscal year shall be reported at the 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 10 of 15 

next Board meeting.  The Executive Board need not formally approve appointments but shall have 
the right to overturn or reverse an appointment or group of appointments by a majority vote of a 
quorum of the Executive Board. 
 
Section 13.3 Committee Leadership.  Committee Chairs shall be appointed by the Executive Board 
Chair.  Vice Chairs shall be appointed by the committee chairs.  The Executive Board need not 
formally approve Committee Chair or Vice Chair appointments, but it shall have the right to 
overturn or reverse an appointment or group of appointments by a majority vote of a quorum of the 
Executive Board. 
 
Section 13.4 Absences and Vacancies.  Three unexcused absences within a fiscal year by a 
committee member may result in termination from the committee if, in the sole judgment of the 
Executive Board Chair, the best interests of the Corporation would be served.  Vacancies may be 
filled at any time by the Executive Board Chair in consultation with the Committee Chair. 
 
Section 13.5 Committee Authorities and Limitations.  A committee shall have and exercise such 
authority of the Executive Board in the management of the Corporation as may be specified in the 
resolution creating such committee.  
 
Section 13.6 Committee Quorum Requirements.  A quorum shall exist when fifty (50) percent or 
more of the appointed active members are present. 
 
Section 13.7 Record Keeping.  Committee findings and recommendations shall be submitted to the 
WDC or Board for final action unless the committee has been expressly granted decision-making 
authority in accordance with these Bylaws. 
 

Article XIV 
 
 ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
 
Advisory committees, comprised in full or in part of non-members, may be convened at any time by 
the Executive Board Chair or by a vote of the Executive Board when the expertise, advice and/or 
assistance of specialists is needed or when a broader community perspective is desired.  Advisory 
committees shall have specified duties and shall exist for limited duration with a sunset date 
established at the time such a committee is convened.  The sunset day may be extended by the 
convening authority. Advisory committee findings shall be submitted directly to the WDC or 
Board. 

Article XV 
 

BOARD MEETINGS AND MEETING NOTICES 
 

Section 15.1 Regular Meetings.  At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board shall establish a 
regular meeting schedule.  Meetings may be cancelled by the Chair so long as one meeting is held 
each program quarter, on dates and at times determined by the Board.  A meeting notice, agenda 
and background information shall be prepared and sent to all members at least seven (7) days prior 
to the meeting.   



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 11 of 15 

 
Section 15.2 Special Meetings.  The Chair shall call special meetings of the Board when requested 
to do so by one-third (1/3) the current membership of the Board, by the Executive Board of County 
Commissioners, or when such a meeting is otherwise deemed necessary by the Chair.  To call a 
special meeting, a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours’ advance notice must be given to each 
director.  
 
Section 15.3 Member Participation in Meetings.  Members of the Board of Directors may 
participate in a meeting of the Board by means of a conference telephone or similar communication 
device, whereby all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time.  
Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting. 

 
Section 15.4 Polling of the Board.  In the event that it becomes necessary for the Board to take 
action on a particular issue and the twenty-four (24) hour notification requirement cannot be met, or 
if a hastily called meeting does not draw a quorum, the Chair may authorize the polling of directors 
in order to facilitate such action by the Chair.  The results of a poll shall be reported at the next 
Board meeting and recorded in the minutes of that meeting.    
 
Section 15.5 Non-member Participation at Meetings.  Participation at Board meetings shall be 
limited to the directors and staff of the Corporation with the following exceptions:  
 
a) When regularly scheduled agenda items call for reports or participation by non-directors 
b)  When, at the discretion of the Chair, comments or other participation by non-directors is 

relevant or material to a matter under consideration or before the group 
    
Section 15.6 Waiver of Notice.  When any notice is required to be given to a director of the Board 
under the provisions of the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Washington Non-Profit 
Corporation Act, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such 
notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of 
such notice.  In addition, attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of 
such meeting, except where the director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to 
the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. 
 

 
 
 

Article XVI 
 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS QUORUM REQUIREMENTS AND VOTING 
 
Section 16.1 Board of Directors Quorum.  A quorum shall exist when fifty (50) percent or more of 
the directors are present.  The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is 
required by law, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. 
 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 12 of 15 

Section 16.2 Board of Directors Voting.  Each director shall have one vote, which may not be 
assigned to another director or alternate.  The Chair shall vote only to make or break a tie.  No votes 
shall be taken by secret ballot. 
 
Section 16.3 Board of Directors Presumption of Assent.  A director present at a Board meeting, at 
which action on any Corporation matter is taken, shall be presumed to have assented to the action 
taken unless such dissent or abstention is entered in the minutes of the meeting, or unless the 
director files a written dissent or abstention to such action with the person taking the minutes of the 
meeting before the adjournment thereof, or unless such dissent or abstention is forwarded by 
registered mail to the Chair of the Corporation within twenty-four (24) hours of the date and time of 
the adjournment of the Corporation meeting.  A director who voted in favor of such action may not 
subsequently dissent or abstain. 
  

Article XVII 
 
 BOOKS AND RECORDS 
 
The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and finances and 
shall keep minutes of the proceedings of the Board, WDC membership meetings, and Youth 
Committee meetings.  Minutes will be made available at the Corporation's principal place of 
business at reasonable times for anyone who desires to see them, and minutes will be reviewed and 
approved at the next meeting of the Board, WDC, or Youth Committee, respectively.   The Board 
shall keep, at its registered office or principal place of business, a copy of its current Articles of 
Incorporation and Bylaws, and a record of the names and addresses of WDC members, directors, 
and officers.  Costs of copying said documents shall be borne by members of the public and 
members of the Corporation except that members of the Corporation shall not be charged for copies 
of the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws. 
 
 Article XVIII 
 
 STAFF, AGENTS, CONSULTANTS, AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
Section 18.1 The Executive Director.  The Corporation, acting through the Executive Board of 
Directors, shall hire and retain an Executive Director who shall be an “at will” employee as defined 
by Washington law.  The Executive Director shall report to the Chair and the Executive Board.  
The Board of Directors may dismiss the Executive Director.   
Section 18.2 Authority and Responsibility of Executive Director.  As the chief executive officer and 
agent of the Board, the Executive Director shall have authority to conduct the day-to-day operations 
of the Corporation; to hire, discipline, set compensation for, discharge, and otherwise supervise 
other staff of the Corporation; and to otherwise ensure that the purposes, policies, and programs of 
the Corporation are fully and properly carried out.  The Executive Director shall have responsibility 
for managing the Corporation’s budget and ensuring that the Corporation's accounting system 
meets acceptable accounting standards. 
 
Section 18.3 Recording Secretary.  The Executive Director shall make available to the Executive 
Board a Recording Secretary whose responsibilities shall include maintaining the attendance roster, 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 13 of 15 

recording minutes of WDC, Board, and committee meetings, and facilitating such other meeting 
arrangements as the Board may require.   
 

Article XIX 
 
 RULES OF ORDER 
 
Roberts' Rules of Order Newly Revised shall constitute the ruling authority in all cases where they 
do not conflict with these Bylaws, any statute of the State, or the Act.  
 
Should the WDC or Board take an action in good faith that is subsequently found to conflict with 
these Bylaws and which is both material and reversible, the member(s) or director(s) with 
knowledge of the breach shall inform the WDC/Board within ninety (90) days or at the next 
WDC/Board meeting, whichever is later, so that the WDC/Board may take corrective action. 
 

Article XX 
 
 ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGEMENT 
 
Section 20.1 Contracts.  The Executive Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, 
to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the 
Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific contracts or instruments.  
Section 20.2 Loans.  No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of 
indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Executive Board.  
Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.  No loans shall be made by the 
Corporation to its officers, directors, members, or staff.   
 
Section 20.3 Expenditure Authorization.  All orders for the payment of money, notes, or other 
evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or 
officers, agent or agents, of the Corporation and in the manner determined by resolution of the 
Executive Board. 
 
Section 20.4 Administrative Controls.  The Executive Board shall adopt purchasing, procurement, 
audit, and other fiscal management policies necessary to implement this Article. 
 
Section 20.5 Fiscal Year.  The Corporation's fiscal year shall begin on the first day of July of one 
year and end on the last day of June of the next year.  
 

Article XXI 
 
 COMPENSATION AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
WDC members and the Executive Board of Directors/Council shall serve without compensation.   
Individual members and directors may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred on behalf of the 
Corporation in accordance with travel and expense reimbursement policies established by the 
Executive Board. 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 14 of 15 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by the Washington Non-Profit Corporation Act, the Corporation 
shall indemnify and hold harmless any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a 
party, to any civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit or proceeding (whether 
brought by or in the right of the Corporation or otherwise) by reason of the fact that that person is or 
was a director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as 
a director or officer of another corporation, against all expenses (including attorney's fees), 
judgments, fines, penalties, costs and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred 
by them in connection with such action, suit or proceeding; and the Board may, at any time, 
approve indemnification of any other person(s) which the Corporation has the power to indemnify 
under the Washington Non-profit Corporation Act.  The indemnification provided by this section 
shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a person may be entitled as matter of the 
law or by contract. 
 
 Article XXII 
 
 DISSOLUTION 
 
The Corporation shall use its funds and/or assets to accomplish the mission of the Corporation and 
the WIOA or its successor/s.  On dissolution of the Corporation, any remaining WIOA funds and/or 
assets shall be returned to the State of Washington.  All other private funds and/or assets purchased 
with private funds shall be donated to one or more charitable, educational or philanthropic 
organizations selected by the Board of Directors pursuant to a plan of distribution as provided for 
by RCW 24.03.230, as amended. 
 
The Governor, the Attorney General, and the elected officials of Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum 
counties shall be notified in writing by certified mail at least ninety (90) days prior to the date when 
a vote to voluntarily dissolve the Corporation shall be taken.  Voluntary dissolution shall occur at a 
regular meeting at which a quorum is present by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the WDC 
membership. 
 

 
 
 

Article XXIII 
 
 AMENDMENTS OF BYLAWS 
 
These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the membership of the Corporation at 
which a quorum exists by a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of members in attendance, provided 
that the proposed amendment(s) were provided in writing to each member at least thirty (30) days 
before the date of the meeting at which the proposed amendment is to be considered.  An 
amendment to the Bylaws shall take effect immediately upon its adoption unless the motion to 
adopt specifies another time for the amendment to become effective, or unless the WDC 
membership has set such a time by a previously adopted motion. 
 



SWWDC Bylaws 
Amended: 3/2005, 3/2006, 5/2006, 8/2013, 6/2015, 5/2016 

Page 15 of 15 

The foregoing Bylaws are adopted by the members of the Southwest Washington Workforce 
Development Council on the 15th day of June 2016, with an effective date of July 1, 2016. 
               
 
 
____________________________________ 

Chair of the WDC  
 
 



 

 

WSW Board Nominations Procedures Page 1 of 3 

Workforce Southwest Washington  
Procedures  
 
BOARD NOMINATION PROCEDURES 
Revision Date: 2/24/2021 
 
Procedures:  
In order to seat a suitable Workforce Development Board that meets the requirements of 
the Workforce Innovation Opportunity Act (WIOA) and the needs of Southwest 
Washington, the Governance Committee will follow this process:  

 
A. New Terms or Terms Ending June 30:   

1. Each year in March, the Governance Committee is responsible for 
nominating suitable members for each open position.   

a. The Governance Committee, in consultation with the WSW CEO, 
determines whether to ask current members whose terms are 
expiring to continue in their positions.   

b. Members who wish to remain on the Board will be considered by 
the Governance Committee to determine their suitability for 
continued service. Governance Committee will email a 
questionnaire that is required to be completed by returning board 
member. If chosen to continue for another term, process will 
continue with step 4 below. 

c. To openly recruit for any remaining open seats, the Governance 
Committee will actively recruit through personal contacts and 
organizations such as:  

▪ Economic Development Councils 
▪ Chambers of Commerce 
▪ Labor Councils 
▪ Current WSW members 
▪ Elected Officials such as Mayors, City Council Members and 

School Board Members 
▪ Non-profit Networks/Support Organizations 
▪ Professional Associations 
▪ Community College 
▪ University 
▪ Higher Education institution providing workforce investment 

activities 

Nominations and subsequent nomination letters will be accepted 
from any of the above listed organizations. 

 
2. WSW CEO and/or Governance Committee will correspond with the 

applicants to inform them of the process and schedule an introduction 
meeting. At the introduction meeting, CEO/Committee Member will provide 
the application packet, organizational information, board expectations, and 
provide the applicant with resources to research.   
 



 

 

WSW Board Nominations Procedures Page 2 of 3 

3. Applicants moving forward must complete and submit the following 
paperwork in order to move forward in the process:   

a. WSW Board Application and  

b. Updated resume.  

4. The Governance Committee will review nominees’ application packet and 
arrange a second meeting with the WSW’s CEO and Governance 
Committee members. The review of the application packet will consist of 
ensuring WIOA requirements are met, and WSW’s mission of Diversity, 
Equity, and Inclusion are considered. If nominee is continuing in process, 
WSW CEO/Governance Committee member will solicit a nomination letter 
from an appropriate entity listed above in 1(c) as required by WIOA.  

5. If possible, the nominee may attend a WSW meeting as a public guest. 
Governance Committee may extend additional invitations to other board 
members as applicable. Governance Committee brings to Executive Board 
for a vote on candidates recommended. Executive Board has the option to 
accept or reject the nominee. 

6. The Governance Committee will make recommendations for nomination to 
the appropriate County Commissioner.  The County Commissioner has the 
right to reject or accept that nominee. If accepted, the County Commissioner 
will proceed accordingly with a letter to the Governor requesting 
appointment. If rejected, the nominee will be notified by WSW CEO.   

7. The newly appointed member will be seated at the next regularly scheduled 
WSW full board meeting and will begin a three-year term. The expiration date 
of the term will be the end of the program year closest to the end of the third 
year. For example, if third year ends 9/10/21, actual term ends 6/30/21. If 
third year ends 3/10/21, actual term ends 6/30/21. 

B. Mid-Term Vacancies: 

1. If a business seat becomes vacant mid-term, the Governance Committee 
will decide if the seat will remain unfilled until the annual process or if they 
will recommend a nominee from the previously nominated pool or open a 
nomination process.  If they choose to fill the seat with a previously 
nominated person, they will follow the process listed above beginning at 
A(4).  If they choose to open a process, they will follow the process listed 
above beginning at A(1)(c).  

2. If a non-business seat becomes vacant mid-term, the Governance 
Committee will immediately seek a new nomination from the appropriate 
organizations and submit the name(s) of nominee(s) to the appropriate 
County Commissioner for nomination.  The person will be seated at the next 
regularly scheduled WSW meeting.  The nominations will be made from 
organizations as follows:  

• Labor Council nominates Labor representative(s) 

• Agency Leads nominate Agency representative 
 
Some seats are filled based on the position rather than the person, for 
example, the Community College President, the Economic Development 



 

 

WSW Board Nominations Procedures Page 3 of 3 

Council President, or the Chamber of Commerce President.  In the event 
that one of these seats is vacant, the position will remain vacant until a 
new representative is hired, and the appointment process can be 
followed.  A nomination letter will be solicited by WSW CEO or 
Governance Committee member if required by WIOA. 

 
 
 
References: 

• TEGL 27-14 WIOA Governance 

• ESD Policy 5610 Local Board Appointment Criteria 
 
Inquiries: 
Please contact Kevin Perkey kperkey@workforcesw.org (360) 567-1066 with questions. 
 

https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=7158
https://wpc.wa.gov/policy/state/WIOA
mailto:jbennett@swwdc.org


WASHINGTON STATE
ECONOMIC RECOVERY
Built on local Workforce solutions.

There is urgent need for business 
to hire skilled workers and 
for workers to secure family-
sustaining wage jobs. 

• 179,000+ vacant jobs
• Over 373,000 unemployed workers
•  Fewer than 2% of workers who recently  

lost unemployment benefits have  
returned to work

• Racial disparity gap is widening
•  Over 90% of those in need are not served 

with the current level of investment

WE RECOMMEND
Strategic investment of $50 million in a
Workforce Innovation Fund to empower 
local solutions with flexible funding.

•  Employer driven solutions putting 
Washintonians into jobs in high- 
demand sectors

•  Pre-apprenticeships, apprenticeships, 
critical, evidence-based earn-and-learn 
models

•  Increase and intentional focus on Black, 
Indigenous, Latinx, AAPI and other people 
of color. Community co-design focused on 
workforce development pathways

SOLUTIONS
Local Workforce Boards bring business, 
education, labor, and communities 
together.

•  For over 80 years, the infrastructure we 
built has integrated systems and dollars 
for the highest possible ROI

•  Data-driven results of over 80% success 
rate, by optimizing multiple resources 
targeted to proven solutions

LEARN MORE
Join the effort to help Washingtonians 
secure their futures. 

washingtonworkforce.org

LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
BOARDS IMPACT 

STATEWIDE 2020/21

Collectively over 15,000  
businesses served 

78,000 workers served



washingtonworkforce.org  |  360-447-8729

MEMBER LIST

Joy Emory, CEO + WWA Chair 
Workforce Snohomish on behalf of 
Snohomish County Workforce Alliance 
Serving Snohomish County 
joy.emory@workforcesnohomish.org 
(425) 921-3482 

Katie Condit, CEO + WWA Vice Chair 
Workforce Central 
Serving Pierce County 
kcondit@workforce-central.org 
(253) 495-8515

Rod Van Alyne, Director + WWA Treasurer 
Eastern Washington Partnership  
Workforce Development Council 
Serving Ferry, Pend Oreille, Garfield, Stevens,  
Lincoln Whitman,  Columbia, Walla Walla,  
and Asotin Counties 
rvanalyne@ruralresources.org 
(509) 684-8421

Tiffany Scott, CEO 
Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
Serving Benton and Franklin Counties 
tscott@bf-wdc.org 
(509) 734-5993 

Marie Kurose, CEO 
Workforce Development Council of Seattle-King 
County 
Serving King County 
mkurose@seakingwdc.org 
(206) 448-0474

Miriam Halliday, CEO 
Workforce Southwest Washington 
Serving Wahkiakum, Cowlitz, and Clark Counties 
mhalliday@workforcesw.org 
(503) 367-8193 

Amy Martinez, CEO 
South Central Workforce Council 
Serving Yakima, Kittitas, Klickitat, and Skamania 
Counties 
amy.martinez@co.yakima.wa.us 
(509) 574-1950

William Westmoreland, CEO 
Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council 
Serving Grays Harbor, Mason, Thurston,  
Pacific, and Lewis Counties 
william@pacmtn.org  
(812) 595-0908

Mark Mattke, CEO 
Spokane Workforce Council 
Serving Spokane County 
mmattke@spokaneworkforce.org 
(509) 960-6263

Bill Dowling, Director 
Olympic Consortium WDC 
Serving Clallam, Jefferson, and Kitsap Counties 
wdowling@co.kitsap.wa.us 
(360) 337-5777 x4767


	01192022 Finance & Executive Board Meeting Agenda
	12152021 WSW Executive Board Meeting MinutesDRAFT
	Policy Memo 1.22
	Policy Memo - 1.22
	Policy Memo
	27TFrom: 27TAmy Gimlin, WSW chief operating officer

	2011 Stevens Amendment Requirements

	Bylaws Amended WIOA UPDATE May 2016.FINAL APPROVED
	SOUTHWEST WASHINGTON WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
	Section 1.2 Vision.  The WDC is the strategic leader for workforce issues in the three-county region of Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties.
	Article VII


	Article X
	Article XI

	BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPOSITION
	Article XII
	AUTHORITY OF THE WDC BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Article XIV

	Article XV
	Chair of the WDC


	Board Nominations Procedures 2021 Final
	WWA_WorkforceInnovationFund_2022_One_Pager (003)

